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August 13, 2020 
 
Tom McDonald 
7287 Denison SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

Rob Beahan 
3148 Thornapple River Dr. 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
 

Jim Koessel 
1540 Hillsboro Ave SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
 

Ken Peirce 
1979 Talamore Ct SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

Sue Slater 
7885 30th St. 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

Cascade Election Trustee Committee 
7287 Denison SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
 

Re:  Dionne v. McDonald, et al 
 Campaign Finance Complaint 
 No. 2020-07-107-21 
 
Dear Mr. McDonald, Mr. Beahan, Mr. Koessel, Mr. Peirce, Ms. Slater, & Cascade Election 
Trustee Committee: 
 
The Department of State (Department) received 24 formal complaints filed by various 
individuals against you alleging violations of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or 
Act), 1976 PA 388, MCL 169.201 et seq. 1  A copy of the complaint and supporting 
documentation is enclosed with this letter.  
 
The complaints were filed with the Department on July 29th and allege that Cascade Township 
Trustee committee is making expenditures on your behalf and has failed to form and register a 
committee with the Kent County Clerk’s office, the appropriate filing official.  The complaints 
further allege that the website, resultsforcascade.com fails to contain a proper paid for by 
statement.   
 
Section 21 requires a committee to be formed upon the spending or receiving $500 or more for 
the purpose of making a contribution or expenditure.  MCL 169.221(1).  Section 24 requires 
committees to file a statement of organization with the proper filing official within 10 days after 
the committee is formed.  MCL 169.224(1).  Section 24 details specific requirements for all 

 

1 The Department has dismissed duplicate complaints and consolidated the remainder into one 
for administrative efficiency. 
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statement of organizations that must be filed.  See MCL 169.224(2)-(3).  A committee that fails 
to file a statement of organization shall pay a late filing fee of $10.00 per business day the report 
isn’t filed not to exceed $300.  MCL 169.224(1).  A person failing to file a statement of 
organization after 30 days, is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine up to $1,000.  Id.   
 
The MCFA and corresponding administrative rules require a person who produces printed 
material that relates to an election include the phrase “Paid for by [name and address of the 
person who paid for the item].”  MCL 169.247(1), R 169.36(2).  Materials produced by anyone 
other than a candidate or the candidate committee are required to include the phrase “with 
regulated funds” after the paid for by statement.  MCL 169.247(4).  A knowing violation 
constitutes a misdemeanor offense punishable by a fine of up to $1,000.00, imprisonment for up 
to 93 days, or both.  MCL 169.247(6). 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the Department’s examination of these matters and 
your right to respond to the allegations before the Department proceeds further.  It is important to 
understand that the Department is neither making this complaint nor accepting the allegations as 
true.  The investigation and resolution of this complaint is governed by section 15 of the Act and 
the corresponding administrative rules, R 169.51 et seq.  An explanation of the investigation 
process is enclosed with this letter and a copy is available on the Department’s website. 
 
If you wish to file a written response to this complaint, you are required to do so within 15 
business days of the date of this letter.  Your response may include any written statement or 
additional documentary evidence you wish to submit.  Due to the ongoing public health 
emergency, the Department asks that all materials be submitted via email to 
Elections@Michigan.gov to my attention.  If you fail to submit a response, the Department will 
render a decision based on the evidence furnished by the complainant. 
 
A copy of your answer will be provided to Mr. Dionne, who will have an opportunity to submit a 
rebuttal statement to the Department.  After reviewing all of the statements and materials 
provided by the parties, the Department will determine whether “there may be reason to believe 
that a violation of [the MCFA] has occurred [.]”  MCL 169.215(10).  Note that the Department’s 
enforcement powers include the possibility of entering a conciliation agreement, conducting an 
administrative hearing, or referring this matter to the Attorney General for enforcement of the 
criminal penalty provided in section 24(1) of the Act. 
 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/sos/Complaint_Guidebook__Procedures_660411_7.pdf
mailto:Elections@Michigan.gov
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If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact me via email. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Adam Fracassi 
Bureau of Elections 
Michigan Department of State 
 

c:  Jeffrey Dionne 
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October 9, 2020 
 

Jeffrey Dionne 
2984 Thornapple River Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 
 
Dear Mr. Dionne: 
 
The Department of State received a response to the complaint you filed against Tom McDonald, 
Rob Beahan, Jim Koessel, Ken Peirce, Sue Slater, and Cascade Election Trustee Committee, 
which concerns an alleged violation of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA), 1976 P.A. 
388, MCL 169.201 et seq.  A copy of the response is provided as an enclosure with this letter. 
 
If you elect to file a rebuttal statement, you are required to send it within 10 business days of the 
date of this letter to the Bureau of Elections, Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West 
Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918.   
 
       Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Adam Fracassi 
Bureau of Elections 
Michigan Department of State 
 

c:  Tom McDonald  
Rob Beahan  
Jim Koessel  
Ken Peirce 
Sue Slater  
Cascade Election Trustee Committee 

 
















